

BYLAWS
OF
THE NORTHPOINT AT MAPLE CENTRE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

These Bylaws provide for the governance of the Northpoint at Maple Centre Homeowners Association ("Association"), a corporation organized under the Washington Nonprofit Miscellaneous and Mutual Corporations Act, chapter RCW 24.06 ("Nonprofit Act"), to be the Owners' association for Northpoint at Maple Centre (the "Community"), created pursuant to the Washington Uniform Common Interest Ownership Act, chapter 64.90 RCW ("Act") and the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for the Community, recorded in King County, Washington, as it may from time to time be amended ("Declaration"). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined have the meaning given to them in the Declaration.

ARTICLE 1 MEMBERSHIP; VOTING

Section 1.1 Membership. The qualifications for membership in the Association are as set forth in the Declaration.

Section 1.2 Number of Votes. Each Owner is entitled to the Voting Interest set forth in the Declaration for each Unit owned by that Owner, so that the Owner's total Voting Interest is the aggregate Voting Interest allocated to all of that Owner's Units.

Section 1.3 Association-Owned Units. In any vote of the Unit Owners, votes allocated to a Unit owned by the Association must be cast in the same proportion as the votes cast on the matter by Unit Owners other than the Association.

Section 1.4 Persons Under Disability. Minors and persons declared legally incompetent shall be eligible for membership in the Association, if otherwise qualified, but shall not be permitted to vote except through a legally appointed, qualified, and acting guardian of their estate voting on their behalf, or, in the case of a minor with no legal guardian of their estate, through a parent having custody of the minor.

Section 1.5 Voting Representative. An Owner may, by written notice to the Board, designate a voting representative for the Unit. The voting representative need not be an Owner. The designation may be revoked at any time by written notice to the Board from a person having an Ownership interest in a Unit, or by actual notice to the Board of the death or judicially declared incompetence of any person with an Ownership interest in the Unit, except in cases in which the person designated is a Mortgagee of the Unit. This power of designation and revocation may be exercised by the guardian of an Owner, the attorney in fact of the Owner under a durable power of attorney, or the administrators or executors of an Owner's estate. If no designation has been made, or if a designation has been revoked and no new designation has been made, the voting representative of each Unit shall be the group composed of all of its Owners.

Section 1.6 Votes Pledge to a Mortgagee. An Owner may, but shall not be obligated to, pledge his or her vote on all issues or on specific issues to a Mortgagee. If the Board has been notified by the Mortgagee that it is enforcing its right to vote pursuant to such pledge, only the vote of the Mortgagee will be recognized on the issues that are subject to the pledge; provided, however, that if the Board has received such notices from more than one Mortgagee, the Mortgagee holding the Mortgage with the highest level of priority among the Mortgages held by those Mortgagees shall be entitled to vote.

Section 1.7 Register of Members. The Board shall cause a register to be kept containing the names and addresses of all members of the Association. Persons who purchase an interest in a Unit shall promptly inform the Board of their interest. Persons who claim to be members of the Association shall, upon request, furnish the Board with copies of any documents under which they assert Ownership of a Unit or any interest therein and any Mortgages thereon.

Section 1.8 Manner of Voting. When a vote is conducted at a meeting, Owners may vote in person, by absentee ballot pursuant to Section 1.11 of these Bylaws, or by a proxy pursuant to Section 1.12 of these Bylaws. When a vote is conducted without a meeting, Unit Owners may vote by ballot pursuant to Section 1.13 of these Bylaws.

Section 1.9 Voting at a Meeting. Unit Owners or their proxies who are present in person at a meeting of the members may vote by voice vote, show of hands, standing, written ballot, or any other method for determining the votes of Unit Owners, as designated by the person presiding at the meeting. If only one of the Owners of a Unit is present at a meeting, that Owner is entitled to cast all the votes allocated to that Unit.

Section 1.10 Voting by Multiple Owners at a Meeting. If more than one of the Unit Owners are present, the votes allocated to that Unit may be cast only in accordance with the agreement of a majority in interest of the Owners. There is a majority agreement if any one of the Owners casts the votes allocated to the Unit without protest being made promptly to the person presiding over the meeting by any of the other Unit Owners of the Unit. If there is no majority agreement, the vote of those Owners shall not be counted.

Section 1.11 Voting by Absentee Ballot at a Meeting. Whenever proposals or Board members are to be voted upon at a meeting of the members, an Owner may vote by duly executed absentee ballot if: (i) the name of each candidate and the text of each proposal to be voted upon are set forth in a writing accompanying or contained in the notice of meeting; and (ii) a ballot is provided by the Association for such purpose. When an Owner votes by absentee ballot, the Association must be able to verify that the ballot is cast by the Owner having the right to do so. Any absentee ballots shall be sent to all Owners in the same manner as notice of meetings, with a specified deadline for the return of the ballots, which shall be no later than the date of the meeting.

Section 1.12 Voting by Proxy; Pledged Votes to Mortgagee. Votes allocated to a Unit may be cast pursuant to a directed or undirected proxy duly executed by an Owner in the same manner as provided in RCW 24.06.110. If a Unit is owned by more than one person, each Owner of a Unit may vote or register a protest to the casting of votes by the other Owners of the Unit through a duly executed proxy. An Owner may revoke a proxy given pursuant to this Section 1.12 only by actual notice of revocation to the secretary or other person presiding over a meeting of the members or by delivery of a subsequent proxy. The death or disability of a Unit Owner does not revoke a proxy given by the Unit Owner unless the person presiding over the meeting has actual notice of the death or disability. A proxy is void if it is not dated or purports to be revocable without notice. Unless stated otherwise in the proxy, a proxy terminates 11 months after its date of issuance.

Section 1.13 Voting Without a Meeting. The Association may conduct a vote without a meeting. In that event, the following requirements apply:

(a) The Association must notify the Unit Owners that the vote will be taken by ballot.

(b) The notice must state: (i) the time and date by which a ballot must be delivered to the Association to be counted, which may not be fewer than 14 days after the date of the notice, and which deadline may be extended in accordance with (g) of this Section 1.13; (ii) the percent of votes necessary to meet the quorum requirements; (iii) the percent of votes necessary to approve each matter other than election of Board members; and (iv) the time, date, and manner by which Unit Owners wishing to deliver information to all Unit Owners regarding the subject of the vote may do so.

(c) The Association must deliver a ballot to every Owner with the notice.

(d) The ballot must set forth each proposed action and provide an opportunity to vote for or against the action.

(e) A ballot cast pursuant to this Section 1.13 may be revoked only by actual notice to the Association of revocation. The death or disability of a Unit Owner does not revoke a ballot unless the Association has actual notice of the death or disability prior to the date set forth in (b)(i) of this Section 1.13.

(f) Approval by ballot pursuant to this Section 1.13 is valid only if the number of votes cast by ballot equals or exceeds the quorum required to be present at a meeting authorizing the action.

(g) If the Association does not receive a sufficient number of votes to constitute a quorum or to approve the proposal by the date and time established for return of ballots, the Board may extend the deadline for a reasonable period not to exceed 11 months upon further notice to all members in accordance with (b) of this Section 1.13. In that event, all votes previously cast on the proposal must be counted unless subsequently revoked as provided in this Section 1.13.

(h) A ballot or revocation is not effective until received by the Association.

(i) The Association must give notice to Unit Owners of any action taken pursuant to this Section 1.13 within a reasonable time after the action is taken.

(j) When an action is taken pursuant to this Section 1.13, a record of the action, including the ballots or a report of the persons appointed to tabulate such ballots, must be kept with the minutes of meetings of the Association.

Section 1.14 Voting by Lessees. If the Governing Documents require that votes on specified matters affecting the common interest Community be cast by lessees rather than Owners of leased Units: (i) this Section 1.14 applies to lessees as if they were Owners (ii) Owners that have leased their Units to other persons may not cast votes on those specified matters; and (iii) lessees are entitled to notice of meetings, access to records, and other rights respecting those matters as if they were Owners. Owners must also be given notice, in the manner provided in these Bylaws, of all meetings at which lessees may be entitled to vote.

Section 1.15 Manner of Acting. Except as otherwise provided by the Act, the Declaration, or these Bylaws, a majority of the votes cast determines the outcome of any action of the members.

ARTICLE 2 MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 2.1 Place. Meetings of the members of the Association shall be held at the Community or a suitable place within the county in which the Community is located, as may be convenient to the membership and designated from time to time by the Board.

Section 2.2 Annual Meeting. A meeting of the members must be held at least once each year. The annual meeting of the Association shall be held in the first quarter of each fiscal year on a date fixed by the Board. At such annual meeting the Owners shall elect members to the Board or fill vacancies therein, and transact such other business as shall properly come before the meeting.

Section 2.3 Budget Meeting. Within 30 days after adoption of any proposed budget for the Association, the Board shall provide a summary of the budget to all of the members and set a date for a meeting of the members to consider ratification of the budget.

Section 2.4 Special Meetings. A special meeting of the members may be called by the president, by resolution of the Board, or upon the written request of a majority of the Board, or upon the written request of Owners having not less than 20% of the Voting Interest in the Association. If the Association does not provide notice to Unit Owners of a special meeting within 30 days after the requisite number or percentage of Unit Owners request the secretary to do so, the requesting members may

directly provide notice to all the Unit Owners of the meeting. Only matters described in the meeting notice delivered pursuant to Section 2.5 may be considered at a special meeting.

Section 2.5 Notice of Meetings. The Board shall provide notice to Unit Owners of the time, date, and place of each annual, budget and special meeting of members not less than 14 days and not more than 50 days before the meeting date. Notice may be by any means described in RCW 64.34.324 of the Act to each Owner, the Declarant pursuant to the Declaration, and to each Eligible Mortgagee, if required by the Declaration. The notice of any meeting shall state the time and place of the meeting and the items on the agenda, including the text of any proposed amendment to the Declaration or organizational documents of the Association, changes in the previously approved budget that result in a change in Assessment obligations, and any proposal to remove a director or officer. Before, during, or after any meeting of the members, any member may, in writing, waive notice of such meeting. Attendance by a member at a meeting of the members shall constitute a waiver of timely and adequate notice unless the member expressly challenges the notice when the meeting begins.

Section 2.6 Quorum. A quorum is present throughout any meeting of the members if persons entitled to cast 20% of the votes in the Association are present in person or by proxy at the beginning of the meeting, have voted by absentee ballot, or are present by any combination of the foregoing. If a quorum is present at a meeting, a majority of the members present may adjourn the meeting from day to day or to such time and place as may be decided by the directors and no notice of such adjournment need be given. No business shall be transacted at an adjourned meeting that could not have been transacted at the meeting from which the adjournment was taken.

Section 2.7 Adjournment of Meetings. If any meeting of members cannot be organized because a quorum has not attended, the members present, in person or by proxy, may by majority vote adjourn the meeting to a time not less than 48 hours from the time the original meeting was called.

Section 2.8 Order of Business. The order of business at meetings of the members shall be as follows unless dispensed with on motion:

- (a) Roll call;
- (b) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice;
- (c) Minutes of preceding meeting;
- (d) Reports of officers;
- (e) Reports of committees;
- (f) Election of directors (annual meeting or special meeting called for such purpose);
- (g) Unfinished business;
- (h) New business; and
- (i) Adjournment.

Owners must be given a reasonable opportunity at any meeting to comment regarding any matter affecting the Community or the Association.

Section 2.9 Parliamentary Authority. In the event of dispute as to parliamentary procedure at a meeting of the members, the parliamentary authority for the meetings shall be the most current available edition of Robert's Rules of Order or such other published code of parliamentary procedure as shall be approved by a majority at the meeting.

Section 2.10 Action of Members by Communications Equipment. Meetings of the members may be conducted by telephonic, video, or other conferencing process if (i) the meeting notice states the conferencing process to be used and provides information explaining how Unit Owners may participate in the conference directly or by meeting at a central location or conference connection, and (ii) the process provides all Unit Owners the opportunity to hear or perceive the discussion and to comment regarding matters affecting the Community and the Association.

Section 2.11 Presumption of Assent. A member of the Association present at a membership meeting at which action is taken on any matter put to a vote of the membership shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless that member's dissent or abstention is entered in the minutes of the meeting, or unless such member files a written dissent or abstention to such action with the person acting as secretary of the meeting before the adjournment thereof, or forwards such dissent or abstention to the secretary of the Association immediately after the adjournment of the meeting. The right to dissent or abstain shall not apply to a member who voted in favor of an action.

Section 2.12 Minutes. Minutes of all membership meetings shall be maintained in a record by the secretary of the Association or by another person designated by the directors. The decision of each matter voted upon at a membership meeting must be recorded in the minutes. Minutes for every meeting shall be approved by the Association before or at the next Association meeting.

ARTICLE 3 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 3.1 Number. The affairs of the Association shall be initially governed by a Board composed of the directors set forth in the Articles. Prior to the Control Termination Date, the Declarant may appoint and remove the directors pursuant to any Special Declarant Right to appoint and remove directors, subject to the right of the Owners to elect additional director or directors, as described in the Declaration. No later than the Transition Date, the Board shall give notice of a Transition Meeting of the Owners to elect a new Board. At the Transition Meeting, the Owners shall elect a Board of [three] directors. The number of directors may be increased or decreased to not fewer than [three] or more than [five], from time to time, by amendment of these Bylaws, provided that no decrease in number shall have the effect of shortening the term of any incumbent director.

Section 3.2 Term. The directors shall take office upon adjournment of the meeting at which they are elected. The directors shall hold office until their respective successors shall be elected and qualified, subject to provisions herein relating to vacancy and removal. The normal term of office for directors will be for three years. However, to provide for staggered terms, at the first election, one-third of the number of directors (or the whole number nearest to one-third) shall be elected for one year, the same number shall be elected for two years, and the remainder shall be elected for three years.

A director shall serve from appointment by the appointing Unit Owner until death, disability, resignation, or removal by the appointing Unit Owner.

Section 3.3 Qualifications. A majority of the directors must be Unit Owners in the Community. A director identified in the Articles or appointed by the Declarant pursuant to any Special Declarant Right to appoint directors or officers need not be a member of the Association. In determining the qualifications of a director or officer, the term "Unit Owner" shall include any director, officer, member, partner, or trustee of any corporation, limited liability company, partnership, trust, or other person who is, either alone or in conjunction with another person, a Unit Owner. Any such person shall be disqualified from continuing in office if the person ceases to have such affiliation with the Unit Owner or is otherwise disqualified from continuing in such office as a natural person.

Section 3.4 Vacancies. Vacancies on the Board caused by reasons other than the removal by a vote of the Association may be filled by vote of the majority of the remaining directors, even though they may constitute less than a quorum.

Each person so selected shall be a director for the unexpired portion of the term or, if earlier, until the next regularly scheduled election of directors.

Section 3.5 Removal of Directors and Officers by Owners. Owners present in person, by proxy, or by absentee ballot at any meeting of the members at which a quorum is present may remove any Board member and any officer elected by the Unit Owners, with or without cause, if the number of votes in favor of removal cast by Unit Owners entitled to vote for election of the Board member or officer

proposed to be removed is at least the lesser of: (i) a majority of the votes in the Association held by such Unit Owners, or (ii) two-thirds of the votes cast by such Unit Owners at the meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (x) a Board member appointed by the declarant may not be removed by a Unit Owner vote during any period of declarant control, (y) a Board member appointed under section 305(3) of the Act may be removed only by the person that appointed that member; and (z) the Unit Owners may not consider whether to remove a Board member or officer at a meeting of the Unit Owners unless that subject was listed in the notice of the meeting. At any meeting at which a vote to remove a Board member or officer is to be taken, the Board member or officer being considered for removal must have a reasonable opportunity to speak before the vote. At any meeting at which a Board member or officer is removed, the Unit Owners entitled to vote for the Board member or officer may immediately elect a successor Board member or officer consistent with this chapter.

Each Unit Owner may remove, with or without cause at any time, the director appointed by the Unit Owner, and may appoint a successor to fill the vacancy thus created.

Section 3.6 Removal of Directors and Officers by the Board. The Board may, without an Owner vote, remove from the Board a Board member or officer elected by the Owners if (i) the Board member or officer is delinquent in the payment of Assessments more than 60 days, and (ii) the Board member or officer has not cured the delinquency within 30 days after receiving notice of the Board's intent to remove the Board member or officer. The Board may remove an officer elected by the Board at any time, with or without cause. At any meeting at which a vote to remove a Board member or officer is to be taken, the Board member or officer being considered for removal must have a reasonable opportunity to speak before the vote. The removal must be recorded in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

Section 3.7 Compensation. A director who is an Owner shall not be entitled to compensation for service as a director. If the Members determine that it is in their best interest to elect a director who is not an Owner, the directors who are Owners may establish reasonable compensation to the non-Owner director, obtain directors' and officers' insurance coverage, and take other actions to attract and retain competent outside directors.

Section 3.8 Organization Meeting. The first meeting of the initial Board shall be held on a date and at a place to be fixed by the president, and no notice shall be necessary to the newly elected directors in order to legally call the meeting.

Section 3.9 Board Meetings During Declarant Control. During the period of declarant control, the Board must meet at least four times a year. At least one of those meetings must be held at the Community or at a place convenient to the Community.

Section 3.10 Board Meetings After Declarant Control. After the transition meeting, all Board meetings must be at the Community or at a place convenient to the Community unless the Unit Owners amend these bylaws to vary the location of those meetings. Regular meetings of the Board may be held at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time by a majority of the directors, but at least two such meetings shall be held during each fiscal year.

Meetings of the Board shall be held at the Community or a suitable place within the county in which the Community is located, as may be agreed to by the Board members. Because each Unit Owner is entitled to appoint one Board member, the Board may elect to have combined meetings of the Board and the Association for any matter that requires the approval of the Unit Owners.

Section 3.11 Notice of Board Meetings. Unless the meeting is included in a schedule given to the Unit Owners or the meeting is called to deal with an emergency, the secretary must provide notice of each Board meeting to each Board member and to the Owners. The notice must be given at least 14 days before the meeting and must state the time, date, place, and agenda of the meeting.

Section 3.12 Waiver of Notice. Before any meeting of the Board, any director may, in writing, waive notice of such meeting. Attendance by a director at any meeting of the Board shall be a waiver by the director of timely and adequate notice unless the director expressly challenges the notice when the meeting begins. If all directors are present at any meeting of the Board, no notice shall be required and any business may be transacted at the meeting.

Section 3.13 Quorum. A quorum of the Board is present for purposes of determining the validity of any action taken at a meeting of the Board only if individuals entitled to cast a majority of the votes on that action are present at the time a vote regarding that action is taken. If a quorum is present when a vote is taken, the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board members present is the act of the Board. If there is less than a quorum present at any meeting of the Board, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time. At the adjourned meeting, provided a quorum is present, any business that might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice. The directors present at a duly convened meeting may continue to do business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough directors to leave less than a quorum; provided however, that any act of the Board shall require a quorum and the votes described in this Section 3.13. Abstention from voting on a motion by a director present at a meeting at which there is a quorum shall be counted as a vote against the motion.

Section 3.14 Voting by Proxy or Ballot. A Board member may not vote by proxy or absentee ballot.

Section 3.15 Presumption of Assent. A Board member who is present at a Board meeting at which any action is taken is presumed to have assented to the action taken unless the Board member's dissent or abstention to such action is lodged with the person acting as the secretary of the meeting before adjournment of the meeting or provided in a record to the secretary of the Association immediately after adjournment of the meeting. The right to dissent or abstain does not apply to a Board member who voted in favor of such action at the meeting.

Section 3.16 Board Packets. If any materials are distributed to the Board before the meeting, the Board must make copies of those materials reasonably available to the Owners, except that the Board need not make available copies of unapproved minutes or materials that are to be considered in executive session.

Section 3.17 Open Meetings. Meetings must be open to the Unit Owners and their voting representatives except during executive sessions, but the Board may expel or prohibit attendance by any person who, after warning by the chair of the meeting, disrupts the meeting. At each Board meeting, the Board must provide a reasonable opportunity for Owners to comment regarding matters affecting the Community and the Association. A gathering of members of the Board or committees at which the Board or committee members do not conduct Association business is not a meeting of the Board or committee. Board members and committee members may not use incidental or social gatherings to evade the open meeting requirements of this Section 3.17

Section 3.18 Executive Sessions. The Board may hold an executive session only during a regular or special meeting of the Board. A final vote or action may not be taken during an executive session. An executive session may be held only to: (i) consult with the Association's attorney concerning legal matters; (ii) discuss existing or potential litigation or mediation, arbitration, or administrative proceedings; (iii) discuss labor or personnel matters; (iv) discuss contracts, leases, and other commercial transactions to purchase or provide goods or services currently being negotiated, including the review of bids or proposals, if premature general knowledge of those matters would place the Association at a disadvantage; or (v) prevent public knowledge of the matter to be discussed if the Board or committee determines that public knowledge would violate the privacy of any person.

Section 3.19 Participation by Communications Equipment. Fewer than all Board members may participate in a regular or special meeting of the Board by, or conduct a meeting through, the use of any means of communication by which all Board members participating can hear each other during the

meeting. A Board member participating in a meeting by these means is deemed to be present in person at the meeting

Section 3.20 Meetings by Communications Equipment. All members of the Board may meet by telephonic, video, or other conferencing process if: (i) the meeting notice states the conferencing process to be used and provides information explaining how Owners may participate in the conference directly or by meeting at a central location or conference connection; and (ii) the process provides all Owners the opportunity to hear or perceive the discussion and to comment as provided in Section 3.17.

Section 3.21 Board Action by Written Consent. Instead of meeting, the Board may act by unanimous consent as documented in a record by all its members. Actions taken by unanimous consent must be kept as a record of the Association with the meeting minutes. After the transition meeting, the Board may act by unanimous consent only to undertake ministerial actions, actions subject to ratification by the Unit Owners, or to implement actions previously taken at a meeting of the Board. Such written consent may be signed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the same document.

Section 3.22 Minutes. Minutes of all Board meetings shall be maintained in a record by the secretary of the Association or by another person designated by the directors. The decision of each matter voted upon at a membership meeting must be recorded in the minutes. Minutes for every meeting shall be approved by the Association before or at the next Association meeting.

Section 3.23 Duties of Directors. In the performance of their duties, the officers and directors are (i) required to exercise the degree of care and loyalty to the Association required of an officer or director of a corporation organized under chapter 24.06 RCW, and (ii) subject to the conflict of interest rules governing directors and officers, under chapter 24.06 RCW. In performing the duties of a director, a director shall be entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports, or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in each case prepared or presented by:

(a) One or more officers or employees of the Association whom the director believes to be reliable and competent in the matter presented;

(b) Counsel, public accountants, or other persons as to matters that the director believes to be within such person's professional or expert competence; or

(c) A committee of the Board upon which the director does not serve, duly designated in accordance with a provision in the Articles or Bylaws as to matters within its designated authority, which committee the director believes to merit confidence;

as long as, in any such case, the director acts in good faith, after reasonable inquiry, when the need thereof is indicated by the circumstances and without knowledge that would cause such reliance to be unwarranted.

ARTICLE 4 OFFICERS

Section 4.1 Designation. The principal officers of the Association shall initially be a president, a secretary, and a treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by and from the Board. The directors may appoint from the Board such other officers as in their judgment may be necessary or desirable. If there are more than three directors, the directors may also elect a vice president. Two or more offices may be held by the same person, except that a person may not hold the offices of president and secretary simultaneously.

Section 4.2 Election of Officers. The officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board at the first Board meeting after the annual meeting of the Association. They shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board.

Section 4.3 Removal of Officers. At any regular meeting of the Board or at any special meeting of the Board called for such purpose, upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause. A successor to the removed officer may be elected at any such meeting.

Section 4.4 President. The president shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. The president shall preside at all meetings of the Association and the Board and shall have all powers and duties usually vested in the office of the president.

Section 4.5 Vice President. The vice president, if any, shall perform the duties of the president when the president is absent or unable to act, and shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board.

Section 4.6 Secretary. The secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board and of the Association and shall have custody of the business records of the Board and the Association, other than financial records kept by the treasurer. The secretary shall also perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board.

Section 4.7 Treasurer. The treasurer shall have responsibility for Association funds and securities and shall be responsible for keeping full and accurate accounts of all receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Association.

Section 4.8 Other Officers and Employees. Other officers of the Association, and any persons employed to assist the officers, shall have such authority and shall perform such duties as the Board may prescribe within the provisions of the applicable statutes, the Declaration, and these Bylaws.

Section 4.9 Compensation. The Board may pay reasonable compensation to any officer or Owner who performs substantial services for the Association in carrying out the management duties of the Board. The Board's decision to compensate an officer shall not become final until 60 days after notice of it (including the amount of compensation to be paid) has been given to all persons entitled to notice of meetings of the Association, and such decision may be reversed by the members of the Association at a meeting duly called and held within 60 days after the notice of the decision was given.

Section 4.10 Vacancies. Vacancies in any office arising from any cause may be filled by the Board at any regular or special meeting of the Board.

ARTICLE 5 COMMITTEES

Section 5.1 Committees of Directors. The Board may appoint one or more committees that consist of one or more directors. Any committee authorized to exercise any power reserved to the Board must include at least two Board members who have exclusive voting power for that committee. Committees that are not so composed may not exercise the authority of the Board and shall be advisory only. The appointment of any such committee shall not relieve the Board of its ultimate responsibility for the administration and management of the Association and the Community.

Section 5.2 Limitation on Committees. No committee shall have the authority to: amend the organizational documents of the Association; recommend the sale, lease, or transfer of substantially all the assets of the Association; recommend a voluntary dissolution of the Association; declare distributions; make Assessments; approve a plan of merger, consolidation, or exchange; or take any action prohibited under the Nonprofit Act, the Act, the Declaration, or the Articles, or otherwise reserved to the full Board of Directors or to the members of the Association.

ARTICLE 6 HANDLING OF FUNDS

Section 6.1 Accounts. The Association shall establish such accounts as the directors deem necessary to properly administer the Association and operate and maintain the Community. The treasurer shall be responsible for supervising the funds of the Association. Once the Association begins making Assessments, it shall keep at least two separate funds as described in this Article 6.

Section 6.2 Working Capital Account. The Association shall establish and keep a separate checking account to be known as the "Working Capital Account." This account will be used for the normal administration of the Association and operation and maintenance of the Community and will receive all monthly Assessments, first purchasers' initial working capital contributions to the Association, and other monies received by the Association. Checks shall be issued from this account for all management and operation expenditures necessary for the Community and maintenance expenses that do not require resorting to reserve funds. Reserve funds for the Replacement Reserve Account and any other reserve account that may be established will normally be deposited in the Working Capital Account and checks immediately issued to the other account so an overall account of the funds received and disbursed by the Association is centralized in the ledger of the Working Capital Account.

Section 6.3 Replacement Reserve Account. Once the Association begins making Assessments, it shall maintain a separate account or fund that shall be known as the "Replacement Reserve Account." The treasurer shall deposit to this account all funds received for the future periodic maintenance, repair, and replacement of the Common Elements. The monies in this account may not be commingled with any other funds of the Association and may only be used for the purposes and in the manner set forth in the Declaration.

Section 6.4 Deposit or Investment of Funds. The funds of the Association may not be commingled with the funds of any other association or with the funds of any managing agent of the association or any other person, or be kept in any trust account or custodial account in the name of any trustee or custodian. Withdrawals of funds from the Replacement Reserve Account shall require the signature of at least two persons who are officers or directors of the Association.

ARTICLE 7 ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL PROVISIONS

Section 7.1 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association shall be the calendar year.

Section 7.2 Contracts. The Board, except as otherwise provided in the Bylaws, may by resolution authorize any officer or agent of the Association to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Association. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. Unless so authorized, no officer, agent, or employee shall have power or authority to bind the Association in any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose in any amount.

Section 7.3 Checks, Drafts, Etc. Except as otherwise specifically determined by resolution of the Board, or as otherwise required by the laws of the State of Washington, checks, drafts, promissory notes, orders for the payment of money, or other evidence of indebtedness of the Association shall be signed by such officer or officers, or agent or agents, of the Association and in such manner as is from time to time determined by resolution of the Board.

Section 7.4 Books and Records. The Association shall keep at its registered office, its principal office in Washington, or at its secretary's office in Washington, the following:

- (a) The Association's current Articles and any amendments thereto;
- (b) The Association's current Bylaws and any amendments thereto;
- (c) The Association's records of accounts and finances;
- (d) The name and addresses of the Association's current officers and directors; and

- (e) The minutes of the proceedings of the Board, and any minutes that may be maintained by committees of the Board.

Records may be written or electronic if capable of being converted to writing.

Section 7.5 Copies of Resolutions. Any person dealing with the Association may rely upon a copy of any of the records of the proceedings, resolutions, or votes of the Board when certified by the president or secretary.

Section 7.6 A Director's Inspection Rights. Every director shall have the right at any reasonable time to inspect and copy all books, records, and documents of any kind and inspect the physical properties of the Association and shall have such other rights to inspect the books, records, and properties of the Association as may be required under any of the Governing Documents or by the provisions of the laws of the State of Washington.

Section 7.7 Right to Copy and Make Extracts. Any inspection under the provisions of this Article 7 may be made in person or by an agent or attorney of that person, and the right to make such inspection shall include the right to make copies and to make extracts at the sole expense of the party conducting the inspection.

ARTICLE 8 AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may only be amended as set forth in the Declaration.

Section 8.1 These By-Laws may be amended only with written approval of a majority of the Board of Directors. Any Amendment will be signed by the approving Directors and copies delivered to all members within thirty (30) days of adoption.

Section 8.2 In the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws, the Articles shall control; and in the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these Bylaws, the Declaration shall control; and in the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and the Declaration, the Declaration shall control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF we, all being the Directors of Northpoint at Maple Centre Homeowners Association have hereunto set our hands this 29th day of November, 2018.

Karen Hruza

Northpoint at Maple Centre Homeowners
Association, Secretary

CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned do hereby certify that I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of Northpoint at Maple Centre Homeowners Association; the foregoing By-Laws constitute the original By-Laws of said Association as adopted at a meeting of the Directors hereof.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bylaws were duly adopted by the directors of the Association by unanimous consent on 29th day of November, 2018.

Name: Karen Hruza
Title: Secretary
Date: 11/29/2018